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Pontifical Missionary Library

History
The Collegio Urbano of Propaganda Fide was founded in Rome in 1627 and was provided with a library like the one constituted by the Propaganda Fide Congregation, which had just been established in the magnificent Palazzo di Propaganda on Piazza di Spagna. 

The books given to the Propaganda Fide Congregation first constituted the initial collection of the Library of the Collegio Urbano and other rare books and precious atlases were constantly added as time went. Many works came from the famous Polyglot Typography of the Sacred Congregation which had been founded for the missionary apostolate in the very same year as the Collegio itself. On the occasion of the 1925 Holy Year, the Supreme Pontiff Pius XI. launched an initiative for the organisation of a Missionary Exhibition in Vatican. The books specially collected for this event were then given to the Propaganda Fide Congregation and came to constitute the Pontifical Missionary Library. The next year, in 1926, both the Collegio Urbano and the Athenaeum were moved to their new location on the Gianicolo Hill. 

The Pontifical Missionary Library is a product and a result of the Vatican Missionary Exhibition which took place during the 1925 Holy Year. Pius XI. wanted as many published works as possible about the missionary Ministry and the Catholic Missions to be gathered for the Exhibition and he wanted to cover both the past centuries and the specific historical period he lived in, including all books whose publication had been motivated or inspired in some way by the missions.

On May 3., 1923, the Prefect of the Sacred Congregation of Propaganda Fide invited all Bishops to send to Rome ancient and recent  books written by missionaries or about the Missions to be part of the Exhibition. He also wrote to the Vicars, the Prefects and the Superiors of the missionary Orders and Congregations asking them to send: geographic tables, grammars, and dictionaries of the native languages, catechisms, books concerning the sacred history, theological works, and studies about the history, the topography and the peoples of the countries in which the Missions were active.

The plea of the Holy Father was heard and about 30,000 books in all languages were sent to Rome for the Vatican Missionary Exhibition, among them many in-folios. The arguments covered the history of missions, studies about the local uses and customs, the history of the evangelized peoples, catechism, theology, liturgy, geography, ethnography, ethnology, linguistics, all very significant works. 

The Vatican Library, too, as well as the Library of the Collegio Urbano of the “de Propaganda Fide” Sacred Congregation, put vary rare and precious works at the disposal of the visitors. The Orders, Congregations and Religious Institutions showed much generosity as well and sent books of great value. 

Pius XI. and the Prefect of the “de Propaganda Fide” Sacred Congregation decided to constitute a permanent Missionary Library and wanted it to be established in Rome. Many scientists and scholars who visited the Missionary Library welcomed the idea. Therefore, at the end of the 1925 Jubilee, the Pope decreed that the books section of the Exhibition would remain in Rome to be constituted into the Pontifical Missionary Library that would be used as a center of research about the missions under the supervision of the “de Propaganda Fide” Sacred Congregation.

The Missionary Library was relocated in the Propaganda Fide building of Piazza di Spagna. The Orders, Congregations and Religious Institutions generously agreed to give to the Pope the works sent on occasion of the Missionary Exhibition and only asked to be sent back those books that were really priceless to them.

The new Library was put under the supervision of the “de Propaganda Fide” Sacred Congregation which was to ensure that the Missionary Library worked in close relationship with the Archives of the Congregation so as to promote and support scientific research on missions.

Father Robert Streit, O.M.I., was appointed First Librarian and put in charge of the books section of the Missionary Exhibition.

The new establishment was regularly enriched with works coming from the Library of the Collegio Urbano. The countries of mission, too, as well as the Missionary Institutions and various organizations and privates gave with great generosity a large amount of books, adding precious works and important periodicals to the already existing collections.

The Library of the Pontifical University Urbaniana and the Pontifical Missionary Library were united as part of the recent restructuring programme of the university in 1979, giving birth to a new and greater facility. The collection of the Missionary Library amounts now to: 350,000 books and brochures, 12 incunabula, about 1,100 sixteenth-century works, 4,666 periodicals among which 851 are still published while the remaining are either published occasionally only or no longer published at all.

Apart from the original collection belonging to the Pontifical Missionary Library of the Congregation for the Evangelization of the Peoples, once called “de Propaganda Fide”, many other works are part of collections given by great names:

· The Cardinal Marella Collection (Far East missions, culture and history); 

· The Cardinal Jullien Collection (Church Law);
·  The Grottanelli Collection (anthropology, ethnology);
·  The Garofalo Collection (Holy Scriptures);
· The Father Humbertclaude Collection (Japanese history and culture in Japanese)

The Library also has a very peculiar catalogue, unique of its kind, insofar as it is a catalogue of publications in non-European languages – this is a major characteristic of the establishment which boasts a rich collection of over 18,000 books written in 530 non-European languages, among which 270 African languages. 

Many languages from Asia are represented as well: the Library contains more particularly many books in Chinese, Japanese, Korean, Vietnamese, Hindi, Urdu, Malay, Hebrew, Arabic, Armenian, etc. Books written in the native languages of America are found, too, for instance in Quechua, as well as in other languages of Australia, Oceania and New Guinea.

Its rich patrimony in past and present publications from the countries of mission, including in Christian books written in native languages or works personally written by missionaries even on general issues such as geography, ethnology, ethnography, sociology, linguistics, popular traditions, religions, art, development, etc., makes of the Missionary Library a really unique facility of its kind in the whole world. 

The rising number of missionary, Catholic and non-Catholic, publications is reviewed every year in the periodical "Bibliographia Missionaria" which has been uninterruptedly published since 1935. The scope of this review is to give the experts and scholars in Missiology a scientific tool consisting in a missionary bibliography. The publication is exchanged or sold with and to institutions, libraries and all scholars interested in publications related to missions and missiology.

The Missionary Library today

The patrimony of the Pontifical University Urbaniana Library consists mainly in monographs. The number of books on the shelves is estimated at about 350,000. The number of periodicals amounts at about 4,666 titles and, among these, 851 are still published. 

The Library receives over 18,000 people, and its collection is increased by about 4,500 works, every year.

There are two paper catalogues (classified by authors, titles and subjects) with handwritten and typed cards: these contain all that was in possession of the Library up to 1992; an electronic catalogue has been activated in 1993 and contains today about 186.000 cards.

The Library is part of the Society of the Church Libraries of Rome (URBE, Unione Romana Biblioteche Ecclesiastiche) with which it shares bibliographic information and data and exchanges reviews and University theses. 

Belonging to such a Society requires an adhesion to common standards of practice and a certain uniformity regarding the bibliographic data. An electronic catalogue that would meet such requirements would also offer a more efficient tool to researchers: an easier access to information will allow for better and more far-reaching cross-studies and would provide scholars with the necessary scientific basis for the writing of theses, studies, books, articles and so on. 

P. Marek A. Rostkowski, O.M.I.

                                                                                  Chief Executive of the Library
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